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Dubai Islamic Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (Aman) (PSC)
Beard of Directors’ report

The Board of Directors les pleasure in submitting their repori end the endited comsolidated
financial stedements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Iscorporation and registered offices

Dubei lslamic Insurance & Reifnsurance Company (Aman) (PSC) is registered 83 a public shareholding
compeny in Dubef, Unfled Arah Emirates. The Company caries out general Takaful (insuwrance)
business in acoordance with the principles of Islamic Sharia's es imterpreted by its Farwe and Sharia
Board. The Company s also licensed to engage in Retakaful and Efe Takafi! business. The registered
zddress of the Company is P.O. Box 157, Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

Prineipal activitics

The Company mainly issues shost term Tekaful coniracts in connecion with mctor, marine, fire and
engineering, general accident risks, group life, credit fife, individnal [ife and medicad risks {collectively
known as general Takaful). The Company also invests in investment securities and properies.

Fawacial peeifion and resuit

The Smancial position and results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set om
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Dirertors

The following were the Directors of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017:
Mr. Mokanmed bin Omair bin Yousef Al Muohairi Chairman

Dx. Mohammed Ali Al Hosani Vice Cheirman
M. Abdulrahman Ahmed Senan Board Member
Mr. Masser Al-Falah Al Qahtani Bourd Meamber
Audifors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 have been audited by Deloitie
& Touche (M.E.) and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

By ceder of the Board of Directors

—_—

-

Mohammed Omeir Youse! Almbkeiri
Chairman
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- Deloitte & Touche (M.E.)
Building 3, Level 6
o) Emaar Square

Downtown Dubai
P.O. Box 4254

Dubai

United Arab Emirates

Tel: +971 (0) 4 376 8888
Fax:+971 (0) 4 376 8899
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Shareholders
Dubai Islamic Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (Aman) (PSC)
United Arab Emirates

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Dubai Islamic Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (Aman) (PSC)
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(IESBA Code) together with the other ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in the United Arab Emirates and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities requirements in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 37 of the consolidated financial statements, which describes the uncertainty as
to the full and timely recoverability of assets with a total carrying value of AED 15.3 million held by the
former Chief Executive Officer (CEO) or entities controlled by him on trust and for the benefit of the Group.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Cont’d...

Anis Sadek (521), Cynthia Corby (995), Georges Najem (809), Mohammad Khamees Al Tah (717), Musa Ramahi (872), Mutasem
Dajani (726), Rama Padmanabha Acharya (701) and Samir Madbak (386) are registered practising auditors with the UAE Ministry of

Economy.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

| Key audit matter

| How the matter was addressed in our audit

|

Valuation of takaful contract liabilities and retakaful contract assets

Valuation of technical provisions

At 31 December 2017, the Group had the following reserves as required by the U.A.E. Insurance Authority as per the

Financial Regulations for Takaful Companies:

e  Uneamed contribution reserve - AED 169,456,552 (gross), AED 47,958,776 (net)
e  Claims reported unsettled - AED 155,660,576 (gross), AED 25,745,101 (net)

»  Mathematical reserve - AED 13,868,172 (gross), AED 2,342,860 (net)

e  Claims incurred but not reported - AED 51,850,187 (gross), AED 21,709,464 (nct)
®  Unallocated loss adjustment expense - AED 2,491,330 (net)

»  Unit Linked Liabilities - AED 639,150,280 (net )

Refer to Note 3 (accounting policy) and Note 7 (financial disclosures)

The technical provisions are a material balance within the
consolidated financial statements. Valuation of these
technical provisions is highly judgmental, and requires a
number of assumptions to be made that have high estimation
uncertainty. This is particularly the case for those provisions
that are recognised in respect of claims that have occurred,
but have not yet been reported to the Group. Certain lines of
business also contain greater inherent uncertainty, for
example, those where claims emerge more slowly over time,
or where there is greater variability in claim settlement
amounts.

The key assumptions that drive the reserving calculations
include loss ratios, estimates of the frequency and severity of
claims and, where appropriate, the discount rates for longer
tail classes of business by territory and line of business.

The valuation of technical provisions depends on accurate
data about the volume, amount and pattern of current and
historical claims since they are often used to form
expectations about future claims. If the data used in
calculating technical provisions, or for forming judgements
over key assumptions, is not complete and accurate then
material impacts on the valuation of technical provisions may
arise.

The calculation of the technical provisions involves complex
and subjective judgments about future events, both internal
and external to the business. Any small change in the
assumptions used can lead to material impacts on the
valuation of the technical provisions.

Our audit procedures included:

Testing the underlying Group data provided to the
Group’s external valuer to source documentation.
Evaluating and testing of key controls around the
claims handling and case reserve setting processes
of the Group including allocation of retakaful
portion of the claims.

Evaluating and testing of key controls designed to
ensure the integrity of the data used in the
actuarial reserving process.

Checking samples of claims case reserves through
comparing the estimated amount of the case
reserve to appropriate documentation, such as
reports from loss adjuster and retakaful contracts.
Re-performing reconciliations between the claims
data recorded in the Group’s systems and the data
used in the actuarial reserving calculations.
Recalculating the unearned premium reserve
based on the earning period on takaful contracts
existing as at 31 December 2017.

Obtaining the retakaful treaty summary for the
year and verifying the details in the summary to
the respective agreements on samples basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Valuation of takaful contract liabilities and retakaful contract assets (continued)

Key audit matter | How the matter was addressed in our audit

Valuation of technical provisions

In addition, the valuation of re-insurers’ share of claims | In addition, with the assistance of our actuarial
outstanding is dependent on, but not directly correlated to, | specialists, we:

the valuation of the underlying claims outstanding. There
is judgement involved in ascertaining the level of retakaful
share of IBNR held, which depends on the specific terms
of the retakaful contracts in place.

» performed necessary reviews to ascertain whether the
results are appropriate for financial disclosure.

» reviewed the actuarial report compiled by the
independent external actuaries of the Group and
calculations underlying these provisions, particularly

Furthermore, valuation of life takaful contract liabilities .
the following areas:

involves complex and subjective judgement made by the
management and the independent external actuary about Appropriateness of the calculation methods and
variety of uncertain future outcomes, including the approach (actuarial best practice)

estimation return, such as expense, mortality and Review of assumptions

persistency. Changes in these assumptions can result in Sensitivities to key assumptions

material impacts to the valuation of these liabilities. Risk profiles

General application of financial and mathematical
As a result of all the above factors, we consider the | rules

valuation of takaful contract liabilities and retakaful
contract assets as a key audit matter.

Other Information

The Board of Directors and management are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the annual report of the Group. We obtained Board of Directors’ report prior to the date of this
auditor’s report and the remaining information of the annual report is expected to be made available to us
after that date. The other information does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining information of the annual report of the Group, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

Responsibilities of the Management and these charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards and their preparation in compliance with the
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, its Article of Association and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Responsibilities of the Management and those charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives of are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on thc Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Group and
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We are also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

* matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, we report that:

e we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

e the consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the
applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015;

e the Group has maintained proper books of account;

e the financial information included in the report of the Directors is consistent with the books of accounts of
the Group;

e as disclosed in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has purchased or invested in
shares during the financial year ended 31 December 2017;

e Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements reflects material related party transactions, and the terms
under which they were conducted;

o based on the information that has been made available to us, and except for the matter in the last paragraph,
nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Group has contravened during the
financial year ended 31 December 2017 any of the applicable provisions of the U.A.E. Federal Law No. (2)
of 2015, the UAE Federal Law No. (6) of 2007 concerning the establishment of the Insurance Authority
and Organisation of its operation or of its Articles of Association which would materially affect its activities
or its financial position as at 31 December 2017; and

e Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements reflects the social contributions made during the year.

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 and the related Financial Regulations for Takaful
Companies issued by the Insurance Authority, we have obtained all the required information and explanations
we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit. As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group is still in the process of complying with certain Sections of the Financial Regulations for
the Takaful companies issued by the Insurance Authority.

Deloitte & Touche (M.E.)

Musa Ramahi

Registration No. 872

28 March 2018

Dubai, United Arab Emirates



Dubai Islamic Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (Aman) (PSC)

Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2017

Notes

ASSETS
Takaful operations’ assets
Cash and bank balances 5
Retakaful contract assets

Unearned contribution reserve

Claims reported unsettled

Mathematical reserve

Claims incurred but not reported
Takaful receivables
Other financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 9
Other financial assets measured at fair value

through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Investment property 1t
Due from Shareholders’

[C-RES BES BRI

Total takaful operations’ assets

Shareholders’ assets

Cash and bank balances 5
Statuary deposit 6
Other financial assets measured at fair value

through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 9
Other financial assets measured at fair value

through profit and loss (FVTPL) 9
Prepayments and other receivables 10
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Investment property 11
Furniture and equipment 12
Due from related parties 30

Total shareholders’ assets

Total assets

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2017 2016

AED AED
14,755,343 17,545,301
121,497,776 117,455,023
129,915,475 122,054,316
11,525,312 14,157,992
30,140,723 23,865,175
74,193,165 86,293,659
17,252,707 18,310,187
1,523,447 2,200,696
12,174,832 12,438,567
92,101,449 104,580,435
505,080,229 518,901,351
49,477,352 40,576,342
10,000,000 10,000,000
74,988,934 79,581,093
646,379,263 605,152,379
12,169,939 12,002,157
6,974,744 9,069,306
52,915,168 54,061,433
3,149,146 4,122,383
5,957,097 3,164,111
862,011,643 817,729,204
1,367,091,872 1,336,630,555




Dubaij Islamic Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (Aman) (PSC) 7
Consolidated statement of financial position

An 92 31 December 2017 (continued)
Notes 2037 206
AED AED
'TAKAFUL OPERATIONS?’ LIABILITIES AND DEFICIT
Takaful operations’ Habilities
Trade and other paysbles 14 48,729, 4at 56,498,997
Takeful payables 15 68,908,003 75,320,393
Tuakeaful contract Hebilities:
Uneaned contribution reserve 7 169,456,552 180,529,905
Claims reported unsettied 7 155,660,576 148,137,195
Mathematical resesve 7 13,868,172 16,999,357
Claims Incusred but not reporred 7 51,850,117 48,429,978
Unallocaed logs sdjustment expenses 7 2,491,330 1,646,397
Deferred discount 4225429 4,350,101
Amounts bield under Retakaful treatics 5,615,809 3,979,454
Total tainful operstioas’ labilitics 510,304,759 536,291,467
Takafuol operations’ deficit
Deficit in policyholders’ fund (185,902,361)  (189,367,124)
Qmxd Hassan from sharcholders 189,902,361 139,367,124
Policyholders’ investments revaluation reserve (15,724,530) (17,390,116)
Total deficit from takuaful operations 17 (15,724,330) (17.390,116)
Tota! tahnful operations' Uinbilities and surplus 508,080,229 514,901,351
SHAREHOLDERS' LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Sharsholders' liab{lities
Due to Bank i3 19,543,801 10,667,340
Trade mnd other payables 14 10,707,884 18,203,927
Takufu] payabley’ 15 3,143,052 2,334,454
Due to relsted parties 30 3,379,083 6,142,520
Unit linked liabilitics 7 639,150,280 595,587,545
Murabzha paysble 16 - 10,250,000
Due to policyholder 92,101,448 104,530,435
Total shareholders' liabilities T19,43554% 747,766,121
Shareholders' squity
Share capital 18 225,750,000 125,750,000
Lega) reserve 19 1,571,054 18,720,615
General reserve 20 1,571,054 18,729,615
Investments sevaluation reserve - FYTOC! 9 (67,567,235) (74,308,679)
Accumulated losses (76,547,190)  (113,029,974)
Bquity attributable to shareholders of the Parent 34377,683 70,370,577
Non-controlling interest {901,589) (407,494)
Total Equity 83,576,094 69,963,083
Total shareholders’ lishilities and equity 962,011,643 817,729,204
Toisl takafal operations’ lisbilities and deficit,/
shaceholders’ lhhill{!u and quity\ 1367,095,872 1,336,630,555
Trad Faltmas =
Jihad Fai = - Mohammed Omeir Yousef Almheiri
Chief Exccutive Officer( Chairmen

The accompanying notes formén integra] pert of these cansolidated financial statements.
e =
R ey
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Dubai Islamic Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (Aman) (PSC)

Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Attributable to policyholders
Takaful income

Gross takaful contributions
Retakaful share of accepted business
Retakaful share of ceded business

Net Takaful contributions
Net transfer to unearned contributions reserve
Decrease in mathematical reserve

Net Takaful contributions earned

Discount received on ceded Retakaful
Policy fees

Takaful expenses

Gross claims incurred

Retakaful share of accepted business claims
Retakaful share of ceded business claims

Net Takaful claims

Change in provision for outstanding claims
Retakaful share of outstanding claims
Increase in incurred but not reported claims

Decrease in unallocated loss adjustment expenses reserve

Net claims incurred
Excess of loss of takaful contribution

Net Takaful income

Wakala fees

Investment (loss)/income
Mudarib’s share

Reversed policyholders dividend

Net loss from takaful operation for the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Note

21
21
21

21

22
22
22

22

23
24
23

2017 2016
AED AED
380,830,815 414,455,951
(218,024,338) (224,783,342)
(49,738,136) (39,786,399)
113,068,341 149,886,210
15,116,106 8,549,281
499,005 884,459
128,683,452 159,319,950
14,798,201 11,387,781
15,371,469 21,664,090
158,853,122 192,371,821
(136,927,955) (190,224,859)
33,934,714 56,983,688
23,699,892 20,406,742
(79,293,349) (112,834,429)
(7,523,381) 5,871,158
7,861,159 (5,085,379)
2,854,339 (14,931,644)
(844,933) (1,646,397)
(76,946,165) (128,626,691)
(6,383,275) (8,902,017)
(83,329,440) (137,528,708)
75,523,682 54,843,113
(76,016,716) (64,365,342)
(42,203) 300,449
- (75,112)
- 1,765,346
(535,237) (7,531,546)




Dubai Islamic Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (Aman) (PSC)

Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

Attributable to shareholders
Income

Investment income

Wakala fees from policyholders
Mudarib’s share from policyholders

Expenses

Policy acquisition cost

General and administrative expenses

Contribution from Qard Hassan to policyholders’ fund
Net operating loss of subsidiaries

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to shareholders

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Earnings /(loss) per share

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Note

24
23
23

25

26

27

10

2017 2016
AED AED
204,475 1,478,437
76,016,716 64,365,342
- 75,112
76,221,191 65,918,891
(27,266,887) (26,630,221)
(34,708,529) (47,168,168)
(535,237) (7,531,546)
(4,627,784) (4,671,352)
(67,138,437) (86,001,287)
9,082,754 (20,082,396)
9,476,849 (19,671,641)
(394,095) (410,755)
9,082,754 (20,082,396)
0.042 (0.09)




Dubai Islamic Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (Aman) (PSC)

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Attributable to Policyholders:

Loss for the year

Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Changes in fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to Policyholders

Attributable to Shareholders:
Profit/(Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Changes in fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through

other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
Attributable to:

Shareholders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

11

2017 2016

AED AED
(535,237) (7,531,546)
1,665,586 31,193,776
1,130,349 23,662,230
9,082,754 (20,082,396)

4792761 (24,437,515
13,875,515 (44,519,911)
14,269,610  (44,109,156)
(394,095) (410,755)
13,875,515 (44,519,911)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Dubai Islamic Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (Aman) (PSC)

Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of furniture and equipment
Gain on sale of investments measured at FVTPL, net
Loss on revaluation of investment property
Allowance for doubtful receivables
Dividend income
Profit income
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in Retakaful contract assets

Decrease /(increase) in Takaful receivables
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in due from related parties

Increase in Takatul contract liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in amounts held under Retakaful treaties
(Decrease)/increase in Takaful and Retakaful payables
Decrease in trade and other payables
(Decrease)/increase in due to a related party

Increase in deferred discount

Decrease/(increase)in deferred policy acquisition costs

Cash generated from operations
Employees’ end of service benefits paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of furniture and equipment

Proceeds from sale of furniture and equipment

Purchase of other financial assets measured at FVTPL

Proceeds from sale of other financial assets measured at FVTPL

Net increase in unit linked investments

Purchase of other financial assets measured at FVTOCI

Proceeds from redemption/sale of other financial assets measured at FVTOCI
Dividend income received

Profit income received

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of [jara payables

Receipts from Murabaha financing

Increase in due to bank
Increase in zakat payable

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 5)
Non-cash transactions:

Introduction of new share capital in non-controlling interest
Write off of loan from shareholder

13

2017 2016
AED AED
9,082,754 (20,082,396)
1,239,113 1,536,076
2364,407 (1,935,967)
1,410,000 3,500,000
1,134,000 8,500,000
(2,857,685) (2,458,065)
(271,128) (222,528)
1,205,634 1,639,611
13,307,095 (9,523,269)
(15,546,780) (10,281,380)
10,966,490 (1.940,268)
(167,782) 2,829,168
(2,792,985) 2,190,927
41,147,220 55,445,210
764,908 (9.451)
(5,657,335) 19,925,009
(5,205,038) (13,365,732)
(2,763,436) 4,882,842
354,974 222,501
2,094,564 (100)
36,501,895 50,375,457
(1,147,211) (849,385)
35,354,684 49,526,072
(289,977) (1,398,176)
24,101 S
(486,061) (3,195,317)
1,113,754 9,665,554
(43,562,735) (38,805,309)
(213,338) (2,459,907)
12,129,500 .
2,857,685 2,458,065
271,128 222,528
(28,155,943) (33,512,562)
(10,250,000) (4,046,570)
. 1,389
9,281,461 (9,333,785)
(189,573) (730,306)
(1,158,112) (14,109,272)
6,111,052 1,904,238
33,121,643 31,217,405
39,232,695 33,121,643
. 353,000
- 797,591

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

1. General information

Dubai Islamic Insurance & Reinsurance Company (Aman) (PSC) is registered as a public shareholding
company in Dubai, United Arab Emirates. The Company carries out general Takaful (insurance) business
in accordance with the principles of Islamic Sharia'a as interpreted by its Fatwa and Sharia Board. The
Company is also licensed to engage in Retakaful and life Takaful business. The registered address of the
Company is P.O. Box 157, Dubai, United Arab Emirates.

The Company obtained its commercial license on 12 March 2003 and commenced operations on 8 April
2003.

The Company mainly issues short term Takaful contracts in connection with motor, marine, fire and
engineering, general accident risks, group life, credit life, individual life and medical risks. The Company
also invests in investment securities and properties.

The Company’s business activities are subject to the supervision of its Fatwa and Sharia’a Board
consisting of three members appointed by the shareholders. The Sharia’a Board performs a supervisory
role in order to determine whether the operations of the Company are conducted in accordance with
Sharia’a rules and principles.

The Company with its subsidiaries are together referred to as the “Group” in these consolidated financial
statements. At 31 December 2017, the Company had the following subsidiaries:

Place of
incorporation Beneficial of Proportion
(or registration) ownership  of voting
Name of subsidiary and operation profit power held Principal activity
% %

Nawat Investments L.L.C. United Arab Emirates 100.00 100.00 Investment in
commercial, industrial
and agricultural
enterprises and
management.

Technik Auto Service United Arab Emirates 100.00 100.00 Vehicles’ repair

Centre Co. L.L.C services

Amity Health L.L.C. United Arab Emirates 90.00 90.00 Medical billing
services

The Chairman of the Group holds 1% of Nawat Investments L.L.C and 1% of Technik Auto Service Centre
Co. L.L.C on behalf and for the benefit of the Group.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

2.  Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
2.1 New and revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the consolidated financial statements

The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017, have been adopted in these consolidated financial statements. The application of these
revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior years but
may affect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements.

. Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes relating to the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised
losses.

. Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities; and the Group has
applied these amendments for the first time in the current year. A reconciliation between the opening
and closing balances of the due to bank and Murabaha payable balance is provided in note 16.
Consistent with the transition provisions of the amendments.

. Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle - Amendments to IFRS 12 Disclosure
of Interest in Other Entities.

2.2 New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not yet applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Effective for
annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 — 2016 Cycle amending 1 January 2018
IFRS 1 Firsi-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting

Standards and 1AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

(2011).

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 1 January 2018

The interpretation addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of
transactions where:

e there is consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign
currency;

e the entity recognises a prepayment asset or a deferred income
liability in respect of that consideration, in advance of the
recognition of the related asset, expense or income; and

e the prepayment asset or deferred income liability is non-monetary.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-Based Payment regarding classification 1 January 2018
and measurement of share based payment transactions.

Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Relating to the different 1 January 2018
effective dates of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the forthcoming
new insurance contracts standard.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)
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2. Application of mew and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

(continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (continued)

New and revised IFRSs

Amendments to IAS 40 Investment Property: Amends paragraph 57 to
state that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment
property when, and only when, there is evidence of a change in use. A
change of use occurs if property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition
of investment property. A change in management’s intentions for the use
of a property by itself does not constitute evidence of a change in use.
The paragraph has been amended to state that the list of examples therein
is non-exhaustive.

Finalised version of IFRS 9 [IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014)] was
issued in July 2014 incorporating requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment, general hedge accounting and derecognition.
This amends classification and measurement requirement of financial
assets and introduces new expected loss impairment model.

o Impairment: The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces an 'expected
credit loss' model for the measurement of the impairment of
financial assets, so it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before a credit loss is recognized.

e Hedge accounting: Introduces a new hedge accounting model that
is designed to be more closely aligned with how entities undertake
risk management activities when hedging financial and non-
financial risk exposures.

¢ Derecognition: The requirements for the derecognition of financial
assets and liabilities are carried forward from  IAS 39.

A new measurement category of fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI) will apply for debt instruments held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets.

A new impairment model based on expected credit losses will apply to
debt instruments measured at amortised costs or FVTOCI, lease
receivables, contract assets and certain written loan commitments and
financial guarantee contract.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to the additional
hedge accounting disclosures (and consequential amendments) resulting
from the introduction of the hedge accounting chapter in IFRS 9.

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on or after
1 January 2018

1 January 2018

When IFRS 9 is first applied
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

2. Application of mew and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
(continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Effective for

annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018

In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which established a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

« Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

» Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
in the contract.

« Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to
deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by IFRS 15.

Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to 1 January 2018
clarify three aspects of the standard (identifying performance obligations,

principal versus agent considerations, and licensing) and to provide some

transition relief for modified contracts and completed contracts.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle amending 1 January 2019
IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, I1AS 12
Income Taxes and IAS 23 Borrowing Costs.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)
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2. Application of mew and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

(continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (continued)

New and revised IFRSs

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax
loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when
there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. It
specifically considers:

Whether tax treatments should be considered collectively;
Assumptions for taxation authorities' examinations;
The determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and

e The effect of changes in facts and circumstances.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognise, measure, present
and disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting
model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low
value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with
IFRS 16’s approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its

predecessor, IAS 17.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Relating to prepayment
features with negative compensation. This amends the existing
requirements in IFRS 9 regarding termination rights in order to allow
measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the business model, at
fair value through other comprehensive income) even in the case of
negative compensation payments.

Amendments to IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures:
Relating to long-term interests in associates and joint ventures. These
amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture that form part of
the net investment in the associate or joint venture but to which the
equity method is not applied.

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on or after
1 January 2019

1 January 2019

1 January 2019

1 January 2019
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

2.  Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
(continued)

2.2 New and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Effective for

annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021

IFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current
fulfillment value and provides a more uniform measurement and
presentation approach for all insurance contracts. These requirements are
designed to achieve the goal of a consistent, principle-based accounting
for insurance contracts. IFRS 17 supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
as of 1 January 2021.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28  Effective date deferred
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011) relating to the indefinitely. Adoption is
treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from and investor to its  still permitted.
associate or joint venture.

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these new
standards, interpretations and amendments, except for IFRS 9 and IFRS 17, may have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group in the period of initial application.

Management anticipates that IFRS 17 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statement for
the annual period beginning 1 January 2021. The application of [FRS 17 may have significant impact on
the amounts reported and disclosure made by the Group’s consolidated financial statements in respect of
the insurance contract. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimates of the effects of the
application of this standard until Group performs a detailed review.

The IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instrument in July 2014, which replaces IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 brings
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments project: classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018, with early application permitted. Except for hedge accounting, retrospective
application is required but providing comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting the
requirements are general applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions.

The Group has in previous year adopted the first phase of the IFRS 9 with regards to classification and
measurement of the financial instruments and plans to adopt the final phase of IFRS 9 (Impairment and
hedge accounting) on the required effective date from 1 January 2018.

The application of the finalised version of IFRS 9 may have significant impact on amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements in respect of Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of effects of the application
until the Group performs a detailed review.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

3.  Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to each years presented

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and applicable requirements of United Arab Emirates (UAE) Federal Law No.
(2) of 2015 and United Arab Emirates (UAE) Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 on Establishment of Insurance
Authority and Organization of its operations for disclosure purpose only.

On 28 December 2014, the United Arab Emirates (UAE) Insurance Authority issued Financial Regulation
for insurance companies and were then subsequently published in the UAE official Gazette No. 575 on
28 January 2015 and come into force on 29 January 2015.The insurers are given a grace period of between
one to three years to comply with Financial Regulations, depending on the section involved.

The Group is in the process of complying with the requirements of the Financial Regulations for Insurance
Companies issued by the Insurance Authority especially pertaining to Article (1) of Section (7) and Appendix
(1) relating to presentation of financial statements and disclosures and calculation disclosure in respect of the
solvency margin and claims development schedule in addition to the compliance with investment
concentration limits.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments and investment properties that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets, goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account when pricing the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
for measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value such as value in use in IAS

36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into level 1,2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to fair value measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other that quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Arab Emirates Dirham (AED). The principal
accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Group and entities
controlled by the Group. Control is achieved where the Group has:

® power Over an investee,
e exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

e the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

e  potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders and other parties;
e  rights raising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting
patterns and previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control over the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the financial period are included in the consolidated income statement from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members.of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

3.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holder to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another IFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot
exceed one year from acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with IAS 39 and IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit
and loss

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control) and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date

Presentation

The consolidated statements of income and consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income
of the Group present separately the profit and loss and the comprehensive income attributable to the participants
and to shareholders.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements presents relevant captions in the consolidated statement of
financial position separately for participants’ fund and shareholders’ fund assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

3.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Gross Takaful contributions

Gross Takaful contributions comprise the total contributions receivable for the whole period of cover
provided by Takaful contracts entered into during the accounting period and are recognised on the date on
which the Takaful policy incepts. Contributions include any adjustments arising in the accounting period
for contributions receivable in respect of Takaful contracts executed in prior accounting periods.
Contributions collected by intermediaries but not yet received, are assessed based on estimates from Takaful
operations or past experience and are included in Takaful contributions.

Unearned contributions are those proportions of contributions written in a year that relate to periods of risk
after the reporting date. The proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for
unearned contributions.

Retakaful contribution

Gross retakaful contribution written comprise the total contribution payable for the whole cover provided by
contracts entered into during the period and are recognised on the inception date of the policy. Contributions
include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of retakaful contracts incepting in prior
accounting periods. Unearned retakaful contributions are those proportions of contribution written in a year that
relate to periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned retakaful contributions are deferred over the term of
the underlying direct insurance policies for risks-attaching contracts and over the term of the retakaful contract
for losses occurring contracts.

Gross retakaful contribution on life are recognised as an expense on the earlier of the date when contribution
are payable or when the policy becomes effective

Claims

Claims consist of amounts paid and payable to Takaful contract holders and third parties and related loss
adjustment expenses, net of salvage and other recoveries and are charged to income as incurred. Provision
for incurred but not reported claims is included within the Claims reported unsettled and reflected in the
consolidated income statement.

The Group generally estimates its claims based on previous experience. Independent loss adjusters
normally estimate claims. Any difference between the provisions at the end of each reporting date and
settlements in the following period is included in the underwriting account for that period.

Retakaful share of claims incurred

Retakaful share of claims are recognised when the related gross claim is recognised according to the terms
of the relevant contract.

Retakaful

The Group cedes Takaful risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses. Retakaful assets
represent balances due from Retakaful companies. Recoverable amounts are estimated in a manner
consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in accordance with the Retakaful contracts.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of
impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when objective evidence exists that the
Group may not recover outstanding amounts under the terms of the contract and when the impact on the
amounts that the Group will receive from the Retakaful can be measured reliably. The impairment loss is
recorded in the consolidated income statement. Ceded Retakaful arrangements do not relieve the Group
from its obligations to policyholders.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

3.  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Retakaful (continued)

Ceded retakaful arrangements do not relieve the Group from its obligations to participants.

The Group also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for insurance contracts where
applicable. Contributions and claims on assumed retakaful are recognised as income and expenses in the same
manner as they would be if the retakaful were considered direct business, taking into account the product
classification of the reinsured business. Retakaful liabilities represent balances due to retakaful companies.
Amounts payable are estimated in a manner consistent with the associated retakaful contract.

Contributions and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed retakaful.

Retakaful assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or
when the contract is transferred to another party.

Policy acquisition costs

Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with and are related to securing new contracts and
renewing existing contracts are amortized over the terms of the policies as Takaful contribution is earned.

Discounts earned

.

Discounts earned are recognised at the time policies are written. Discount earned on outwards retakaful
contracts are deferred and amortised on a straight line basis over the term of the expected premiums payable.

Receivables and payables related to Takaful contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due. These include amounts due to and from agents, brokers
and Takaful contract holders.

If there is objective evidence that the Takaful receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount
of the Takaful receivable accordingly and recognizes that impairment loss in the consolidated income
statement.

Product classification

Takaful contracts are those contracts where a group of participants (the policyholders) mutually cover one
another against prescribed uncertain future events of loss or damage. The Group acts as an agent (Wakil)
on their behalf in managing the Islamic Takaful operations, in consideration of a Wakala fee. Wakala fee is
charged on gross Takaful contributions where the Group retained significant risk on such contributions. No
Wakala fee is charged on those Takaful contributions where they retain insignificant risk. The Takaful
amounts (contributions) paid net of the Wakala fee are considered as Mudaraba capital, where the Group
acts as Mudarib, investing these funds in consideration of a pre-agreed share of the realised profit or loss,
if any. The policyholders further donate their contributions (tabarru) to those other policyholders who suffer
a prescribed event of loss or damage, payable per the policies of the Group, in its capacity as an agent.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer significant financial risk. Financial risk is the risk of
a possible future change in one or more of a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity
price, foreign exchange rate, index of price or rates, credit rating or credit index or other variable provided
in case of a non-financial variable, that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Product classification

Once a contract has been classified as a Takaful contract, it remains as a Takaful contract for the remainder
of its lifetime, even if the Takaful risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and
obligations are extinguished or expired. An investment contract can however be classified as an insurance
contract after its inception if the insurance risk becomes significant.

The policyholder bears the financial risk relating to some insurance contracts or investment contracts. Such
products are usually called unit-linked contracts.

Takaful contract liabilities

@)

(it)

(iii)

(iv)

Unearned contributions reserve

At the end of each year a proportion of net retained contributions of the general Takaful, medical and
group life Takaful is reserved to cover portions of risks which have not expired at the reporting date.
These reserves are calculated using 1/365% method relating to general Takaful except Marine Cargo and
engineering .The UCR for the marine cargo is recognised as fixed proportion of written premium and
UCR for engineering is recognized on a daily increasing basis over the term of the policy period.

Outstanding claims

Takaful contract liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered into and contributions are charged.
These liabilities are known as the outstanding claims provision, which are based on the estimated ultimate
cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date, whether reported or not, after reduction for
the expected value of salvage and other recoveries. Delays can be experienced in the notification and
settlement of certain types of claims, therefore the ultimate cost of claims cannot be known with certainty
at the reporting date. The liability is not discounted for the time value of money. No provision for
equalisation or catastrophic reserves is recognised. The liability is derecognised when the contract
expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

Claims incurred but not reported

A provision is made for the estimated excess of potential claims over uneamed contribution and for
claims incurred but not reported at the financial position date using chain ladder method and Bomhuetter
- Ferguson method (2016: chain ladder method).

The reserves represent management’s best estimates on the basis of:

a) claims reported during the year
b) delay in reporting these claims

Unit linked liabilities

For unit linked policies, liability is equal to the policy account values. The account value is the number
of unit times the bid price. The investment component of these insurance contract are designated as at
fair value through profit and loss.
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3.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Takaful contract liabilities (continued)
(v) Unexpired risk reserve

Provision is made for unexpired risk reserve arising from general takaful contract where the expected
value of claim and expenses attributable to the unexpired periods of policies in force at the reporting date
exceeds the uneamed contribution reserve and already recorded claim liabilities in relation to such
policies .The provision for unexpired risk reserve is calculated by reference to classes of business, which
are managed together, after taking into account the future investment return on investment held to back
the Unearned contributions reserve and outstanding claims.

(vi) Mathematical reserve

The mathematical reserve is determined by independent actuarial valuation of future policy benefit at the
end of each reporting period. Mortality and withdrawal rates used in actuarial valuation of
Mathematical reserve are based on experience and the most current industry standard mortality table.

Surplus/deficit in policyholders’ fund

If the surplus in the participants' fund at the end of a year is sufficiently large, a percentage of the surplus
shall be distributed between participants that have not made a claim, in proportion to their risk contributions
to the fund after accounting for reserves. The distributions will be approved by the Group's Shari'a
Supervisory Board. Any remaining surplus after the distribution will remain in the participants' fund.

A deficiency in participants' fund is made good by a profit free loan (Qard Hassan) from the shareholders’
fund. This loan is to be repaid from future surpluses arising from takaful operations on a priority basis.

On liquidation of the fund, the accumulated surplus in the participants' fund, if any, after meeting all obligations
(including repayment of the outstanding amount of profit free loan), will be dealt with after consulting with the
Group's Sharia’a Supervisory Board. In case of an accumulated deficit, any profit free loan outstanding at the
time of liquidation will not be repayable by the participants' fund and the shareholders' fund will forego such
outstanding amount.

Any deficit in the participants’ fund, except for deficits arising from a decline in the fair value of securities,
is financed by the shareholders through a Qard Hassan (a finance cost free loan with no repayment terms).
The Group maintains a full provision against the Qard Hassan.

Investment income

Profit from investment deposits is recognised on a time proportion basis.

Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive payment is established.

Rental income from investment property which is leased under an operating lease is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.
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3.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

General and administration expenses

Administration expenses are charged to the shareholders’ statement of income. Expenses related to
participants are allocated to consolidated statement of income of participant’s fund on the basis of guidelines
issued by the Sharia’a and Supervisory board.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
are recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

In prior years, the Group had early adopted Phase 1 of IFRS 9.
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3.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification of financial assets

For the purposes of classifying financial assets, an instrument is an ‘equity instrument’ if it is a non-
derivative and meets the definition of ‘equity’ for the issuer except for certain non-derivative puttable
instruments presented as equity by the issuer. All other non-derivative financial assets are ‘debt instruments’.

Debt instruments, including receivables related to Takaful contracts, are measured at amortised cost if both
of the following conditions are met:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Amortised cost and effective profit method

The effective profit method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating profit income over the relevant period. The effective profit rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective profit rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective profit basis for debt instruments (other than those financial assets
designated as FVTPL) are measured subsequently at amortised cost. Profit income is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and deposits in banks with original maturity not
more than three months from the date of placement.

Takaful, Retakaful and other receivables

Takaful, Retakaful and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments are measured at
amortised cost using the effective profit rate method, less any impairment.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

At initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the
equity investment is held for trading.
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3.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

= it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; and

*  on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve. Where
the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is not transferred to consolidated income statement, but is reclassified to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in the consolidated income statement
when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue, unless
the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group designates an investment
that is not held for trading as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) on initial
recognition (as described above).

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria (as described above) are measured at FVTPL.
In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are
measured at FVTPL. A debt instrument may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

Debt instruments are reclassified from amortised cost to FVTPL when the business model is changed such
that the amortised cost criteria are no longer met. Reclassification of debt instruments that are designated as
at FVTPL on initial recognition is not allowed.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on re-measurement recognised in the consolidated income statement. The net gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated income statement is included in the ‘net investment income’ line item in the
consolidated income statement. Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note 35 to fhe
consolidated financial statements.

Profit income on debt instruments as at FVTPL is included in the net gain or loss described above and is
included in the ‘net investment income’ line item.

Dividend income on investments in equity instruments at FVTPL is recognised in the consolidated income
statement when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue
and is included in the net gain or loss described above.
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3.  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. The foreign exchange component forms
part of its fair value gain or loss. Therefore,

e for financial assets that are classified as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component is recognised in
the consolidated income statement; and

e for financial assets that are designated as at FVTOCI, any foreign exchange component is recognised
in other comprehensive income.

For foreign currency denominated debt instruments measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting
period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the financial
assets and are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash
flows of the asset have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
e breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in profit or principal payments; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows reflecting the amount of collateral and guarantee, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective profit rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through the consolidated income statement to the extent that the carrying amount of the
financial asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

De-recognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained profit in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised financing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

On de-recognition of a financial asset that is classified as FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to the consolidated income statement,
but is reclassified to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at ‘FVTPL’ or ‘Other financial liabilities’.

Other financial liabilities, including takaful, retakaful and other payables, Ijara and Murabaha payable and
due to banks are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective profit method, with profit expense recognized
on an effective yield basis.

The effective profit method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating profit expense over the relevant period. The effective profit rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integrat part of
the effective profit rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.



Dubai Islamic Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (Aman) (PSC) 32

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

3.  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the
end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised
cost of the instruments and are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in consolidated income statement.

Furniture and equipment

Furniture and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated income statement when incurred.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 4 years
Office equipment 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of furniture and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
consolidated income statement.

Liability adequacy test
At the end of each reporting date the Group assesses whether its recognised Takaful liabilities are adequate
using current estimates of future cash flows under its Takaful contracts. If that assessment shows that the

carrying amount of its Takaful liabilities is inadequate in the light of estimated future cash flows, the entire
deficiency is immediately recognised as charge against income and an additional reserve created.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group’s sharcholders.
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Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property
under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the investment property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated income statement in the period in which the
investment property is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Group operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of each entity are expressed in Arab Emirates Dirhams
(“AED”), which is the functional currency of the Group, and the presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements.

Transactions in currencies other than the Group’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at
the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each reporting date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognized in consolidated income statement in the year in which they arise except
for:

= Exchange differences which relate to assets under construction for future productive use, which are
included in the cost of those assets where they are regarded as an adjustment to finance costs on foreign
currency financings;

= Exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

= Exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur, which form part of the net investment in a foreign
operation, and which are recognized in the foreign currency translation reserve and recognized in profit
or loss on disposal of the net investment.
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Zakat

Zakat as approved by the Group’s Sharia’a Supervisory Board is computed on the following basis:

e Zakat on shareholders’ equity is deducted from retained earnings and is computed on their Zakat Pool (Legal
Reserve, General Reserve, Retained Earnings and employees’ end of service benefits).

e Zakat is distributed by a committee appointed by the Board of Directors and operating as per the by-law set
by the Board.

e Zakat on paid up capital and proposed dividend is not included in the Zakat computation and is payable
directly by the shareholders themselves.

Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity

Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity is made in accordance with the Group’s policy which meets
the requirements of U.A.E. labour laws, and is based on current remuneration and cumulative years of service
at the reporting date.

Defined contribution plan

U.A.E. National employees in the United Arab Emirates are members of the Government-managed
retirement pension and social security benefit scheme established pursuant to U.A.E. Federal Labour Law
No. 7 of 1999. The Group is required to contribute 12.5% of the “contribution calculation salary” to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. These employees are also required to contribute 5% of the
“contribution calculation salary” to the scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement pension and social security scheme is to make the specified contributions. The contributions are
charged to the consolidated income statement.

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with and are related to securing new contracts and renewing
existing contracts are amortised over the terms of the policies as contribution is earned.

4.  Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3 to these consolidated
financial statements, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The significant judgments and estimates made by management, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
described below:
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Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
Valuation of unquoted equity investments

Where the fair values of financial assets recorded on the statement of financial position cannot be derived
from active markets, management have determined it using internal valuation that includes the use of
mathematical model. Management has used the comparable multiples method to determine the fair value of
its financial assets; this method derives the value of the investments using the valuation multiples of other
businesses similar in industry, sector and size; assuming that similar companies will have similar valuation
multiples. A median of the identified valuation multiples for similar industry in various countries in the
MENA was used. This median of multiples and the investment’s earnings was used to determine the
investment’s value. Where actual costs related to performance under contracts differ significantly from
management’s estimates, the amount of revenue recognised on contracts to date could be materially
impacted.

Provision for outstanding claims, whether reported or not

Considerable judgement by management is required in the estimation of amounts due to Takaful contract
holders arising from claims made under Takaful contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based on
significant assumptions about several factors involving varying, and possibly significant, degrees of
judgement and uncertainty and actual results may differ from management’s estimates resulting in future
changes in estimated liabilities.

In particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the financial
position date and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) at the
reporting date. The primary technique adopted by management in estimating the cost of notified and IBNR
claims, is that of using past claim settlement trends to predict future claims settlement trends. Claims
requiring court or arbitration decisions are estimated individually. Independent loss adjusters normally
estimate property claims. Management reviews its provisions for claims incurred, and claims incurred but
not reported, on a quarterly basis.

Mathematical reserve

Mortality and withdrawal rates used in actuarial valuation of Mathematical reserve are based on experience
and the most current industry standard mortality table as shown below.

Age Mortality Rate
19-30 0.44-0.53
31-40 0.44-0.89
41-50 0.96-2.51
31-60 2.81-7.58
61-70 8.13-18.81

Unit linked investments

The Group recognizes the unit linked investments and its related liabilities pertaining to the deposit
component of the Takaful contract on gross basis on its consolidated statement of financial position.

These were not recorded in net, as based on the management judgement, financial assets and financial
liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if,
as required by IAS 1, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; which is
not the case for the unit linked investments provided by the Group.
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4.  Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (continued)

Useful lives of furniture and equipment

Furniture and equipment is depreciated over the estimated useful life, which is based on expected usage of
the asset, expected physical wear and tear, which depends on operational factors. The management has not
considered any residual value as it is deemed immaterial.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment losses on Takaful receivables

The Group reviews its Takaful receivables on a regular basis to assess whether a provision for impairment
should be recorded in the consolidated income statement. In particular, judgment by management is required
in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provisions
required. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about the probability of default and probable
losses in the event of default, the value of the underlying security, and realisation costs.

In addition to specific provisions against individually significant Takaful receivables, the Group also makes
a collective impairment provision against Takaful receivables which, although not specifically identified as
requiring a specific provision, have a greater risk of default than when originally granted. The amount of
the provision is based on the historical loss pattern for Takaful receivables within each grade and is adjusted
to reflect current economic changes.

5. Cash and bank balances

2017 2016
AED AED
Cash on hand 40,265 312,300
Bank current balances :
Wakala deposits 25,000,000 25,000,000
Current accounts 39,192,430 32,809,343
64,232,695 58,121,643
Less: Deposits with original maturities
of greater than three months 25,000,000 25,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents 39,232,695 33,121,643
Attributable to:
Policyholders 14,755,343 17,545,301
Shareholders 49,477,352 40,576,342
64,232,695 58,121,643

The profit rates on Wakala deposits with Banks ranges from 1.5% to 2.00% (2016: 1.5% to 2.00%).

Wakala deposit amounting to AED 25,000,000 (2016: AED 25,000,000) have maturity more than three
months.
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6.  Statuary deposit

Wakala deposits held as restricted deposits are maintained in accordance with the requirements of U.A.E.
Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 concerning the formation of Insurance Authority of U.A.E. and are not available
to finance the day to day operations of the Group.

7.  Retakaful contract assets and Takaful contract liabilities

2017 2016
AED AED
Gross
Takaful contract liabilities:
Unearned contribution reserve 169,456,552 180,529,905
Claims reported unsettled 155,660,576 148,137,195
Mathematical reserve 13,868,172 16,999,857
Claims incurred but not reported 51,850,187 48,428,978
Unallocated loss adjustment expenses 2,491,330 1,646,397
Unit linked liabilities 639,150,280 595,587,545
Total takaful contract liabilities, gross 1,032,477,097 991,329,877
Recoverable from retakaful
Retakaful contract assets:
Unearned contribution reserve 121,497,776 117,455,023
Claims reported unsettled 129,915,475 122,054,316
Mathematical reserve 11,525,312 14,157,992
Claims incurred but not reported 30,140,723 23,865,175
Total retakaful share of takaful liabilities 293,079,286 277,532,506
Net
Unearned contribution reserve 47,958,776 63,074,882
Claims reported unsettled 25,745,101 26,082,879
Mathematical reserve 2,342,860 2,841,865
Claims incurred but not reported 21,709,464 24,563,803
Unallocated loss adjustment expenses 2,491,330 1,646,397
Unit linked liabilities 639,150,280 595,587,545

739,397,811

713,797,371
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7.  Retakaful contract assets and Takaful contract liabilities (continued)

Takaful contract liabilities - net movement, comprises of the following:

Unearned Claims Claims incurred
contribution reported Mathematical but not los
reserve unsettled reserve reported
AED AED AED AED
2017
Balance at beginning of the year 63,074,882 26,082,879 2,841,865 24,563,803
Movement during the year (15,116,106) (337,778) (499,005) (2,854,339)
Total 47,958,776 25,745,101 2,342,860 21,709,464
2016
Balance at beginning of the year 71,624,163 26,868,658 3,726,324 9,632,159
Movement during the year (8,549,281) (785,779) (884,459) 14,931,644
Total 26,082,879 2,841,865 24,563,803

63,074,882




TLEL6LETL SPS LS S6S L6E9P9‘T €08°€9SvT S98°1+8°C 6L8C80°9C 788°VL0E9 [eio],
€€TYT0° 109 SHS L3S S6S SSL9E 950°€09 S98°1+8°C 129°1€9 16€°€TE°1 2lig|
8L9°665°61 s T20°9%€ YL6°T6E L : LST°S1ST STS'SPES [BOIpIN
S91°6£8°9 # €10°v6 v€9°S8Y'1 . 18€°6CL T LEV0ES E SOUI[IqRI] 29 SOUBINSUI [BISUSD)
ILT'L91°T - 08T°LE TLL'L9Y - 69v°876 0SLEEL ang
9€€°691°1 o 1SLCT 02£°98C = S6'19S €1€°66T UONRIAR 29 SULIBIA]
€08°LEY - L69Y 6v'LY - 798°6€1 TSL'SPT Surwourduyg
$85°655°C8 $ 6L8V0T‘T SSS08T Y1 - LEV'ELS 6T YIL°009°LY I010IN
910C
TI8‘L6E'6EL 087°0S1°6€9 0EE T6V°T PO 60LTT 098°TYET TOTISPL ST OLL‘8S6'LY [eog,
0LZ°08T V9 08Z°0ST6£9 006°LET 68€°87S 098°THE'T 8€7°206 €09°8TT‘T T
60T ELYTT . 0SL‘8bY 1€0°T€T‘S - STH608 €10°€86'Y [eoIpOIN
6LO°TTI'L - 1S9°LY 989°G6S°T = SSHS9L‘T LSTTIL'E SOUI[IQET] 29 QOUBINSUL [RISUSD)
LIS'YTL'E - SLTS9 YIL16E . LYS'EPST TLL'ETL ong
TEE'S6S T . P8EYT S09°69T - 8LIILS $99°6EY UONRIAR 29 SULIRTA
12€Y9% - 899°y LOT'SL = LYS‘SLY 669707 Buusuiduyg
$8T6E]°0L - TOLTLLY TL6°STIET - TZ6°€LY ST 6EL‘SLLOE 010\
“LY0T
aav aav aav aav aav aav aav
1ejog, momam—maam— momﬂoﬂxo ﬁoto&o.— JAIISII ﬁo—ﬁomﬁq— JAIISII
%ou—ﬁm— wmﬁD aﬂcsam-_.ﬁ& wmo— jou w=£ —ﬁumaaava—wﬂz ﬂot@&o& =oma=£m.5=°o
pajeoojreun U@h.:-on_ mEmﬁ—U mama—U ﬁoﬁh«oﬁp

NWQ_BOZOm Dﬁﬁ ,wo momﬁQﬁHOo Joﬁumoﬁmmomm: JoRIUOD ﬁamvﬂmht
Aﬁoﬁﬂmwﬂog mom«m—ma—&_— JPenuod Eﬁ&v—a,ﬁ ﬁ:& §Josse Peuod —:.«ﬁv—saoﬂm . h
(PaNUNU0) £ 10T IPqUIN( [ PIPUS 1834 31} 10]
SJUdUII)E)S [RIDURULJ PIIEPIOSUOD IY) 0) SIJON
o (DSd) (wewry) *0)) dURINSUY 2P dULINSUJ dTWe[s] reqn



Dubai Islamic Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (Aman) (PSC)
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8.  Takaful receivables

Due from policyholders
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Due from takaful /retakaful companies
Due form brokers/ agents
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

All Takaful receivables are attributable to Policyholders.

41

2017 2016

AED AED
20,821,899 26,868,607
(1,585,527) (4,973,562)
19,236,372 21,895,045
52,339,116 60,432,194
18,532,150 18,192,858
(15,914,473)  (14,226,438)
74,193,165 86,293,659

The average credit period for customers is 90 days. No profit is charged on the past due receivables. The
Group has provided for receivables based on the estimated irrecoverable amounts, determined by reference
to past default experience and management’s assessment of current economic conditions as to the future

recoverability of these balances.

At the reporting date, there is no significant concentration of credit risk that will result in a loss to the Group.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk to receivables outside the industry in which the Group

operates.

Inside United Arab Emirates

Due from policyholders
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Due from takaful /retakaful companies
Due form brokers/ agents
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

2017 2016

AED AED
20,818,847 26,611,918
(1,585,527) (4,716,873)
19,233,320 21,895,045
39,795,073 44,343,352
18,532,150 18,192,854
(5,914,473) (4,239,444)
71,646,070 80,191,807




Dubai Islamic Insurance & Reinsurance Co. (Aman) (PSC)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

8.  Takaful receivables (continued)

2017
Aging of takaful receivables

Past due and not impaired
Less than 30 days

30-90 days

91-180 days

181-270 days

271-365 days

More than 365

Past due and impaired
More than 365
Total takaful receivables (gross)

2016
Aging of takaful receivables

Past due and not impaired
Less than 30 days

30-90 days

91-180 days

181-270 days

271-365 days

More than 365

Past due and impaired
More than 365

Total takaful receivables (gross)
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Takaful and

retakaful Brokers and
Policyholders companies agents Total
AED AED AED AED
7,769,401 5,821,025 3,963,383 17,553,809
4,101,703 8,265,661 8,572,244 20,939,608
4,265,918 8,586,181 1,672,020 14,524,119
1,935,747 6,531,808 714,051 9,181,606
766,985 3,409,964 273,778 4,450,726
393,566 4,020,075 582,560 4,996,200
19,233,320 36,634,714 15,778,036 71,646,070
1,585,527 3,160,359 2,754,114 7,500,000
20,818,847 39,795,073 18,532,150 79,146,070
7,466,196 10,190,778 3,680,487 21,337,461
6,459,615 10,519,272 7,860,805 24,839,692
2,677,294 12,894,430 1,487,859 17,059,583
3,440,092 6,417,129 364,108 10,221,329
1,023,836 2,116,178 996,409 4,136,423
800,245 509,348 933,559 2,243,152
21,867,278 42,647,135 15,323,227 79,837,640
4,744,640 1,696,217 2,869,627 9,310,484
26,611,918 44,343,352 18,192,854 89,148,124
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8. Takaful receivables

Outside United Arab Emirates

Due from policyholders
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Due from takaful /retakaful companies

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

2017
Aging of takaful receivables

Past due but not impaired
Less than 30 days

30 - 90 days

91 - 180 days

181 - 270 days

271 - 365 days

More than 365 days

Past due and impaired
More than 365 days

Total takaful receivables (gross)

2016
Aging of takaful receivables

Past due but not impaired
Less than 30 days

30 - 90 days

91 - 180 days

181 - 270 days

271 - 365 days

More than 365 days

Past due and impaired
More than 365 days

Total takaful receivables (gross)
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2017 2016

AED AED

3,052 256,689
- (256,689)

3,052 -

12,544,043 16,088,846
(10,000,000) (9,986,994)

2,547,095 6,101,852

Takaful and
Policy Retakaful Brokers

Holders companies  and agents Total
AED AED AED AED
494 310,405 - 310,899
2,508 479,000 - 481,508
50 322,684 - 322,734

B 267,400 - 267,400

- 505,483 - 505,483

- 659,071 - 659,071

3,052 2,544,043 - 2,547,095

B 10,000,000 - 10,000,000

3,052 12,544,043 B 12,547,095

- 454,547 - 454,547

- 2,437,555 - 2,437,555

- 2,205,556 - 2,205,556

- 419,382 - 419,382

- 18,298 - 18,298

- 566,511 - 566,511

- 6,101,849 - 6,101,847
256,689 9,986,997 - 10,243,686
256,689 16,088,846 - 16,345,533
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8.  Takaful receivables (continued)

44

Included in the Group’s receivables are balances with a carrying amount AED 5,655,271 (2016: AED
2,809,663) which are past due for more than 365 days at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for as there has not been a significant change in the credit quality of these receivables and

the amounts are considered recoverable.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

At 1 January
Charge for the year
Written off during the year

At 31 December

9.  Other financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (A)

- Listed

- Unlisted

Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL) (B)

- Listed

- Unit linked investments

Total other financial assets measured at fair value (A+B)

Attributable to:
Policyholder
Shareholders

740,144,351

2017 2016

AED AED

19,200,000 10,700,000

1,134,000 8,500,000

(2,834,000) -

17,500,000 19,200,000
2017 2016
AED AED
63,334,738 62,133,269
28906903 35,758,011
92241,641 97,891,280
8,752,430 11,765,530
639,150,280 595,587,545
647,902,710 607,353,075
740,144351 705,244,355
18,776,154 20,510,883
721,368,197 684,733,472
705,244,355
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9.

Other financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

Investments by geographic concentration are as follows:

il.

iil.

2017 2016
AED AED
Within U.AE. 65,002,307 68,825,212
Outside U.A.E. 675,142,044 636,419,143

740,144,351 705,244,355

FVTOCI listed and unlisted securities are carried at a value of AED 92,241,641 (2016: AED
97,891,280), with a decline in their fair value from original acquisition cost amounting to AED
83,291,765 (2016: AED 92,198,798). Of this amount, AED 67,567,235 (2016: AED 74,808,679) is
deducted from shareholders’ equity and AED 15,724,530 (2016: AED 17,390,116) is deducted from
policyholders’ fund in accordance with the allocation of investment losses to the shareholders and
policyholders as approved by the Group’s Fatwa and Sharia’a Supervisory Board.

Unlisted securities carried at a fair value of AED 28,906,903 (2016: AED 35,758,011) mainly
represent the Group’s investments in shares of companies registered in Dubai, Algeria and certain
other international markets.

The Group owns shares of Al Salam Bank - Bahrain and Al Salam Bank - Algeria which are held by
the former CEO (who resigned during 2013 - see Note 37) or a company owned by him on behalf and
for the benefit of the Group [Note 30 (a)].

iv. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group purchased and disposed investments amounted
to AED 699,399 and 13,264,254 respectively excluding the purchases and disposals of unit linked
investments.

10. Prepayments and other receivables

2017 2016
AED AED

Advances for acquisition of investment property 3,000,000 3,000,000

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (3,000,000) (3,000,000)

Prepayments 4,048,767 4,781,088

Receivables form employees 1,228,131 1,512,000

Refundable deposits 905,639 900,329

Advance to suppliers 1,070,000 1,055,000

Other receivables 4,917,402 3,753,740

12,169,939 12,002,157
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11. Imvestment property

2017 2016

AED AED

Balance at beginning of the year 66,500,000 70,000,000
Loss on revaluation of investment property (1,410,000) (3,500,000)
Balance at end of the year 65,090,000 66,500,000

Attributable to:

Policyholders 12,174,832 12,438,567
Shareholders 52,915,168 54,061,433
65,090,000 66,500,000

During 2017, the Group recognised a loss due to a change in fair value amounting to AED 1.41 million
(2016: AED 3.5 million). The fair value of the investment property has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried by a professional, independent valuation expert, not related to the Group. The fair value
was determined based on the market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar
properties, in accordance with Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) appraisal and valuation
standards. In addition to this , the Group also obtained a second valuation form a professional, independent
valuation expert , not related to the Group which used different valuation technic in accordance with Royal
Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) appraisal and valuation standards and who valued the property at a
value which is in line with the book value of the investment property . In estimating the fair value of the
property, the highest and best use of the property is their current use.

Fair value hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties are as follows:

At 31 December 2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED AED AED AED
Investment property - - 65,090,000 65,090,000
At 31 December 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED AED AED AED
Investment property - - 66,500,000 66,500,000
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12. Furniture and equipment

Cost
At 31 December 2015
Additions

At 31 December 2016
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2017

Accumulated depreciation
At 31 December 2015
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2016
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2017

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016

13. Due to bank
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Motor Furniture Office
vehicles and fixtures equipment Total
AED AED AED AED
813,171 7,797,977 9,823,971 18,435,119
144,998 228,596 1,024,582 1,398,176
958,169 8,026,573 10,848,553 19,833,295
50,149 10,000 229,828 289,977
(97,000) - - (97,000)
911,318 8,036,573 11,078,381 20,026,272
668,667 6,448,977 7,057,192 14,174,836
60,745 495,679 979,652 1,536,076
729,412 6,944,656 8,036,844 15,710,912
63,123 212,912 963,078 1,239,113
(72,899) - - (72,899)
719,636 7,157,568 8,999,922 16,877,126
191,682 879,005 2,078,459 3,149,146
228,757 1,081,917 2,811,709 4,122,383

The Group obtained a Sharia Compliant secured overdraft facility with a total limit of AED 20 million
(2016: AED 20 million) from an Islamic bank in the U.A.E. to meet business requirements at commercial
profit rates. The facility is secured by lien over fixed deposits based on a Mudarabah financing structure of
AED 20 million (2016: AED 20 million) as margin in favor of the bank and mortgage of investment property

under Jjara Muntahiya Bittamlik facility.
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14. Trade and other payables

Trade payables and accruals
Employees’ end of service benefits (1)
Zakat payable

Balance at end of the year
Attributable to:

Policyholders
Shareholders

2017
AED

60,806,593
7,592,080
1,038,632

69,437,305

48,729,421
20,707,884

69,437,305
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2016
AED

66,011,631
7,533,657
1,157,528

74,702,816

56,498,988
18,203,828

74,702,816

(i) Movements in the provision for employees’ end of service benefits during the year were as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year
Amounts charged during the year
Amounts paid during the year

Balance at end of the year

2017
AED

7,533,657
1,205,634

(1,147,211)

7,592,080

2016
AED

6,743,431
1,639,611
(849,385)

7,533,657

Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity required to cover employees’ end of service indemnity

at the reporting date as per U.A.E. Labour Law.

15. Takaful payables

Inside United Arab Emirates
QOutside United Arab Emirates

Total
Attributable to:

Policyholders
Shareholders

2017
AED

46,064,580

25,991,555

72,056,135

68,908,083
3,148,052

72,056,135

2016
AED

56,008,396
21,646,651

77,655,047

75,320,593
2,334,454

77,655,047
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15. Takaful payables (continued)
Inside United Arab Emirates

Payable to policyholders
Payable to takaful and retakaful companies
Payable to broker/ agent

Outside United Arab Emirates

Payable to policyholders
Payable to takaful and retakaful companies
Payable to broker/ agent

16. Murabaha payable

Murabaha payable
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2017 2016

AED AED
7,808,529 13,659,647
36,603,821 40,502,458
1,652,230 1,846,291
46,064,580 56,008,396
2017 2016

AED AED
25,947,552 21,646,651
44,003 -
25,991,555 21,646,651
2017 2016

AED AED

B 10,250,000

10,250,000

In 2016, the Group had a Murabaha finance from an Islamic bank in U.A.E which carries a profit rate of 12

months EIBOR +3% per annum with a minimum rate of 4.5% per annum.

The Table below details changes in Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities of cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will

be, classified in the Group statement of cash flows as cash flow from financing activities.

Financing Financing

1 January cash  cash outflows

inflows (i) (ii)

AED AED

Due to bank 10,667,340 41,706,009 (32,424,548)
Murabaha payable 10,250,000 - (10,250,000)
20,917,340 41,706,009 (30,198,801)

31 December

2017
AED

19,948,801
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17. Policyholders’ Fund

2017 2016

AED AED
Deficit in Policyholders’ Fund:
Beginning balance of deficit in policyholders’ fund (189,367,124)  (181,835,578)
Loss for the year (535,237) (7,531,546)
Ending balance of deficit in policyholders’ fund (189,902,361) (189,367,124)
Qard Hassan from shareholders (i) 189,902,361 189,367,124
Investment revaluation reserve FVTOCI (ii) (15,724,530)  (17,390,116)
Total deficit in policyholders’ fund (15,724,530)  (17,390,116)

(i) The shareholders finance the policyholders’ deficit excluding loss related to negative fair value
movements of investments in accordance with the Group’s policy, through a Qard Hassan (a profit
free loan with no repayment terms charged to consolidated income statement).

(ii) During the current year, the Group transferred to the policyholders their share of investment
revaluation reserve FVTOCI of AED 15,724,530 (2016: AED 17,390,116) from the shareholders’
equity in the same ratio as the policyholders share of investment losses.

18. Share capital

2017 2016
AED AED
Issued and fully paid:
225,750,000 ordinary shares of AED 1 each
(2016: 225,750,000 ordinary shares) 225,750,000 225,750,000

19. Legal reserve

Tn accordance with United Arab Emirates Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, the Group has established a legal reserve
by appropriation of 10% of the profit of the Parent Company for each year until the reserve equals 50% of the
paid-up share capital. This reserve is not available for distribution except as stipulated by the Law.

During the Annual General Assembly held on 30 April 2017, the shareholders approved to transfer legal reserve
amounting to AED 18,729,615 to partially offset the accumulated losses. All regulatory approvals have been
obtained during the current period

20. General reserve

The Group is required to transfer 10% of the profit of the Parent Company for the year to a general reserve in
accordance with its Articles of Association. The reserve is available for distribution by a resolution of the
shareholders of the Group at an ordinary general meeting, on the recommendation of the Board of Directors.

During the Annual General Assembly held on 30 April 2017, the shareholders approved to transfer general
reserve amounting to AED 18,729,615 to partially offset the accumulated losses. All regulatory approvals have
been obtained during the current period.
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21. Net Takaful contributions

Gross takaful contribution

Motor

Engineering

Marine and aviation

Fire

General and insurance liabilities
Medical

Life

Retakaful share of accepted business
Motor

Engineering

Marine and aviation

Fire

General and insurance liabilities
Medical

Life

Retakaful share of ceded business
Motor

Engineering

Marine and Aviation

Fire

General and Insurance Liabilities
Medical

Life

Net takaful contribution
Motor

Engineering

Marine and Aviation

Fire

General and Insurance Liabilities
Medical

Life
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2017 2016

AED AED
88,899,107 113,784,786
2,921,831 4,961,290
103,367,984 85,971,208
37,424,690 30,519,246
47,352,595 50,864,636
40,875,838 51,344,142
59,988,770 77,010,643
380,830,815 414,455,951
14,530,536 23,067,317
734,936 2,327,383
99,544,589 82,134,742
24,776,943 20,699,743
38,645,454 39,780,892
1,929,749 3,139,393
37,862,131 53,633,872
218,024,338 224,783,342
837,979 1,226,395
1,819,589 2,143,112
2,268,251 2,496,212
10,453,998 8,102,196
435,779 3,469,186
23,133,941 12,061,092
10,788,599 10,288,206
49,738,136 39,786,399
73,530,592 89,491,074
367,306 490,795
1,555,144 1,340,254
2,193,749 1,717,307
8,271,362 7,614,558
15,812,148 36,143,657
11,338,040 13,088,565
113,068,391 149,886,210
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22. Net claims incurred

2017 2016
AED AED
Gross claim incurred
Motor 73,485,780 102,911,557
Engineering 1,741,927 524,568
Marine and aviation 1,550,459 2,151,310
Fire 3,837,409 9,459,786
General insurance and liabilities 5,269,845 7,461,700
Medical 31,300,415 37,956,789
Life 19,742,120 29,759,149
136,927,955 190,224,859
Retakaful share of accepted business claim
Motor 13,240,985 25,544,018
Engineering 76,438 6,619
Marine and aviation 917,832 1,198,343
Fire 550,224 604,827
General insurance and liabilities 3,760,990 5,074,523
Medical - -
Life 15,388,245 24,555,358
33,934,714 56,983,688
Retakaful share of ceded business claims
Motor 4,537,991 2,219,622
Engineering 1,592,432 471,253
Marine and aviation 483,076 540,419
Fire 2,831,484 7,947,211
General insurance and liabilities 198,803 644,492
Medical 13,720,365 7,646,225
Life 335,741 937,520
23,699,892 20,406,742
Net claims incurred
Motor 55,706,804 75,147,917
Engineering 73,057 46,696
Marine and aviation 149,551 412,548
Fire 455,701 907,748
General insurance and liabilities 1,310,052 1,742,685
Medical 17,580,050 30,310,564
Life 4,018,134 4,266,271
79,293,349 112,834,429
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23. Wakala fees and Mudarib’s share

The Group manages the Takaful operations for the policyholders and charges 30% of the gross Takaful
contributions net of fronting contribution as Wakala fees (2016: 25%). In addition, the Group charges (2%)
on fronting contribution as Wakala fees and (100%) on FWU Administrate fees. These Wakala fees rates
were approved by the Group’s Fatwa and Sharia’a Supervisory Board.

During the year, no Wakala fee was charged on gross Takaful contributions amounting to AED Nil
(2016: AED 142,502,970) as the Group retained insignificant risk on such contributions and commission
income from such business was significantly lower than the normal commission. Management, therefore,
decided not to charge Wakala fee on these Takaful contributions.

The Group also manages the Policyholders’ investment funds and is entitled to 25% (2016: 25%) of net

investment income eamned by the Policyholders’ investment funds as the Mudarib’s share. The Mudarib’s
share is AED Nil (2016: 75,112).

24, Investment income/(loss)

2017 2016
AED AED
Loss on revaluation of investment property (1,410,000) (3,500,000)
(Loss)/gain on investments measured at FVTPL, net (2,364,407) 1,935,967
Other investment income
Income from investment deposits 271,128 222,528
Dividend income 2,857,685 2,458,065
Rental income 735,095 589,827
Other income 72,771 72,499
162,272 1,778,886
Allocated to:
Policyholders (42,203) 300,449
Shareholders 204,475 1,478,437

162,272 1,778,886

Investment income and losses are allocated amongst the shareholders and the policyholders on a pro rata
basis. This allocation to policyholders is approved by the Group's Fatwa and Sharia'a Supervisory Board
on an annual basis.
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25. General and administrative expenses

2017 2016

AED AED

Salaries and benefits 26,275,277 27,476,819
Rent 1,869,615 2,070,320
Legal and professional fees 1,994,931 1,945,269
Depreciation 357,769 417,747
Communication 1,188,625 1,348,216
Repairs and maintenance 696,753 564,796
Printing and stationary 364,555 257,956
Travelling and conveyance 181,586 332,473
Advertising 5,810 152,053
Allowance for doubtful receivables 1,134,000 8,500,000
Other 639,608 4,102,519
34,708,529 47,168,168

26. Net operating loss of subsidiaries

2017 2016

AED AED

Other income 18,987,773 21,387,506
Salaries and benefits (13,349,406) (13,643,207)
Workshop (5,207,114) (4,127,228)
Rent (2,062,051) (2,117,086)
Legal and professional fees (255,775) (423,325)
Depreciation (882,144) (1,129,529)
Communication (398,293) (440,632)
Repairs and maintenance (121,396) (145,689)
Printing and stationary (68,849) (128,216)
Travelling and conveyance (54,231) (182,199)
Other (1,216,298) (3,721,747)
(4,627,784) (4,671,352)
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27. Basic and diluted earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit attributable to the shareholders for the year, by weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year.

2017 2016
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to shareholders of the parent
(In AED) 9,476,849 (19,671,641)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 225,750,000 225,750,000
Earnings/(loss) per share (In AED) 0.042 (0.09)

No figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented since the Group has not issued any instruments
which would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised.

28. Operating lease commitments

Operating leases relate to offices with a lease term of 1 year, with an option to extend. All operating lease
contracts contain market review clauses in the event that the Group exercises its option to renew. The Group
does not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the lease period.

2017 2016
AED AED
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised
as an expense during the year (Note 25) 1,869,615 2,070,320

At the end of the reporting date, the Group had no outstanding commitments under operating leases.

29. Fatwa and Sharia’a Supervisory Board

The Group’s business activities are subject to the supervision of its Fatwa and Sharia’a Supervisory Board
consisting of three members appointed by the shareholders. The Fatwa and Sharia’a Supervisory Board
perform a supervisory role in order to determine whether the operations of the Group are conducted in
accordance with Sharia’a rules and principles.

30. Related party transactions

The Group enters into transactions with companies and entities that fall within the definition of a related
party as contained in International Accounting Standard (IAS) 24: Related Parties. Related parties comprise
companies and entities under common ownership and/or common management and control, their partners
and key management personnel. Transactions with such related parties are made on substantially the same
terms, as those prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions with external customers and parties.
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30. Related party transactions (continued)
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The significant balances outstanding at reporting date in respect of related parties included in the

consolidated financial statements are as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Other Other
Major related Major related
Shareholders parties Total  shareholders  parties Total
AED AED AED AED AED AED
Wakala deposits - 5,000,000 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 5,000,000
Carrying value of
investments in ordinary
shares [Note 30(a)] - 34,827,955 34,827,955 - 28,790,322 28,790,322
Cash and cash equivalents - 221,924 221,924 - 221,924 221,924
Due from related parties [Note 30(b)] 4,031,431 1,925,666 5,957,097 2,547,490 616,621 3,164,111
Due to related parties [Note 30(c)] 3,318,573 60,510 3,379,083 5,987,939 154,581 6,142,520

(a) A major shareholder, who is a member of the Board of Directors, is also a Board Member of
Al Salam Bank - Algeria and Al Salam Bank - Bahrain. The Group has equity investments in
Al Salam Bank - Algeria and Al Salam Bank - Bahrain amounting to AED 34.8 million

(31 December 2016: AED 28.9 million).

Out of the total shareholding at the reporting date, 106,530 shares amounting AED 9.7 million of
Al Salam Bank - Algeria were held by the former CEO (who resigned during 2013 and no longer
qualifies as a related party) on trust and for the benefit of the Group and the total shares of
Al Salam Bank - Bahrain (5,476,149 shares amounting AED 5.6 million) are held by a company
controlled by the former CEO (who resigned during 2013 and no longer qualifies as a related party), in

trust and for the benefit of the Group. Refer to note 37 for further details

(b) Due from related parties represents the following:

2017 2016

AED AED
Entities owned by the Chairman of the Board of Directors
Fast Rent A Car L.L.C. - UAE 43,130 96,632
Nation Hospital - UAE 2,522,670 334,263
Bin Omeir Holding Group - UAE 1,511,950 1,251,906
Bin Omeir Auto Motive Group - UAE 879,231 875,166
Bin Omeir Travel & Tourism Group - UAE 126,526 130,221
Bin Omeir Education Foundation - UAE 616,803 225,358
Yas Mineral Water Bottling - UAE 49,980 44310
Chocolatier - UAE 91,672 13,051
National Consultants - UAE 32,528 30,706
International Market Group For General Services - UAE 65,241 -
Fast Passenger Transport - UAE - 4,350
Bin Omeir Medical Group - UAE 17,366 1,244
First Motors - UAE - 153,408
Al Massa Art Products - UAE - 3,496
Total 5,957,097

3,164,111
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30. Related party transactions (continued)

(¢) Due to related parties represents the following:

Entities owned by the Chairman of the Board of Directors
Ajyal International School - UAE

Bin Omeir Holding Group - UAE

Emirates Taxi - UAE

Fast Service Centre - UAE

First Motors - UAE

Fast Line Auto Services - UAE

Total

2017
AED

60,510
861,658
381,405

2,075,510

3,379,083

57

2016
AED

8,818
92,323
145,762
3,279,931
534,375
2,081,311

6,142,520

The income and expenses in respect of related parties included in the consolidated financial statements are

as follows:
2017 2016
Other Other
Major related Major related
shareholders parties Total  shareholders parties Total
AED AED AED AED AED AED
Gross contributions 1,917,725 1,643,382 3,561,107 1,383,580 1,209,665 2,593,245
Gross claims 434,674 2,401,021 2,835,695 123,452 19,638,104 19,761,556
Profit share on investment deposits - 100,000 100,000 - 49,918 49,918
Compensation of key management personnel is as follows:
2017 2016
AED AED
Short term employee benefits 2,264,348 1,804,549
End of service benefits 56,700 56,855
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 2,321,048 1,861,404

31. Segmental information

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reports about the components of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the Company’s management in order to allocate resources to the segment and to
assess its performance. Information reported to the Company’s Board of Directors for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of performance is based on following strategic business activities:

- Takaful activities include the general, life and medical insurance business undertaken by the Group.

- Investment activities represent investment and cash management for the Group’s own account.

- Others represent income and expense activities conducted by the subsidiaries and included in this

consolidated financial report.
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32. Capital management
(i) Governance framework

The primary objective of the Group’s risk and financial management framework is to protect the Group’s
shareholders from events that hinder the sustainable achievement of financial performance objectives,
including failing to exploit opportunities. Key management recognises the critical importance of having
efficient and effective risk management systems in place.

The Group’s risk management function is carried out by the board of directors, with its associated
committees. This is supplemented with a clear organisational structure with delegated authorities and
responsibilities from the Board of Directors to the Chief Executive Officer and other senior managers.

The Board of Directors meets regularly to approve any commercial, regulatory and organisational decisions.
The Board of Directors defines the Group’s risk and its interpretation, limits structure to ensure the
appropriate quality and diversification of assets, aligns underwriting and Retakaful strategy to the corporate
goals, and specifies reporting requirements.

(ii) Capital management framework

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to comply with the regulatory requirements in
the U.A.E. and to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business and maximise

shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

(iii) Regulatory framework

Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of the policyholders and monitor them closely to
ensure that the Group is satisfactorily managing affairs for their benefit. At the same time, the regulators
are also interested in ensuring that the Group maintains an appropriate solvency position to meet unforeseen
liabilities arising from economic shocks or natural disasters.

The operations of the Group are also subject to regulatory requirements within the jurisdictions where it
operates. Such regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities, but also impose certain
restrictive provisions (e.g. capital adequacy) to minimise the risk of default and insolvency on the part of
the insurance companies to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise.

33. Financial instruments
(a) Significant accounting policies
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition,

the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of each
class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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33. Financial instruments (continued)

(b) Categories of financial instruments
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2017 2016
AED AED
Financial assets
At amortized cost 161,434,129 163,745,479
At fair value 740,144,351 705,244,355
901,578,480 868,989,834
Financial liabilities
At amortized cost 176,734,167

162,844,255

(¢c) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities at year-end approximate their carrying amounts
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

34. Risk management
(i) Asset liability management (ALM) framework

Financial risks arise from open positions in profit rate, currency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movements. The Group manages these positions to achieve long-
term investment returns in excess of its obligations under Takaful contracts. The principal technique of the
Group’s ALM is to match assets to the liabilities arising from Takaful contracts by reference to the type of
benefits payable to contract holders.

The Group’s management actively monitors the ALM to ensure in each period sufficient cash flow is
available to meet liabilities arising from Takaful contracts.

The Group’s management regularly monitors the financial risks associated with the Group’s other financial
assets and liabilities not directly associated with Takaful liabilities.

The risks faced by the Group and the way these risks are mitigated by management are summarised below.

34A Takaful risk

The principal risk the Group faces under Takaful contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or
the timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of
claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of
the Group is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of Takaful contracts. The
variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy
guidelines, as well as the use of Retakaful arrangements as well as the diversification of Retakaful providers.
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34. Risk management (continued)
34A Takaful risk (continued)

Frequency and amounts of claims

The frequency and amounts of claims can be affected by several factors. The Group underwrites mainly
property, motor, marine, medical and group life. These are regarded as short-term Takaful contracts, as
claims are normally advised and settled within one year of the insured event taking place. This helps to
mitigate Takaful risk. ‘

Property and liability

Property and liability Takaful is designed to compensate contract holders for damage suffered to properties
or for the value of property lost. Contract holders could also receive compensation for the actual loss caused

by the inability to use the insured properties.

For property Takaful contracts the main risks are fire and business interruption. In recent years, the Group
has targeted policies for properties containing fire detection and/or firefighting equipment

These contracts are underwritten by reference to the replacement value of the properties and contents
insured. The cost of rebuilding properties and obtaining replacement contents and the time taken to restart
operations which leads to business interruptions are the main factors that influence the level of claims. The
Group has Retakaful cover for such damage to limit losses for any individual claim to AED 350,000 (2016:
AED 350,000).

Motor

Motor Takaful is designed to compensate contract holders for damage suffered to their vehicles or liability
to third parties arising through accidents. Contract holders could also receive compensation for the fire or
theft of their vehicles.

For motor contracts the main risks are claims for death and bodily injury and the replacement or repair of
vehicles. The Group has Retakaful cover for such claims to limit losses for any individual claim to
AED 250,000 (2016: AED 250,000).

The level of court awards for deaths and to injured parties and the replacement costs of motor vehicles are
the key factors that influence the level of claims.

Marine

Marine Takaful is designed to compensate contract holders for damage and liability arising through loss or
damage to marine craft and accidents at sea resulting in the total or partial loss of cargoes.

For marine Takaful the main risks are loss or damage to marine craft and accidents resulting in the total or
partial loss of cargoes.

The underwriting strategy for the marine class of business is to ensure that policies are well diversified in
terms of vessels and shipping routes covered. The Group has Retakaful to limit losses for any individual
claim to AED 350,000 (2016: AED 350,000).
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34. Risk management (continued)
Frequency and amounts of claims (continued)
Medical, group life and personal accident

Medical Takaful is designed to compensate the contract holders for medical costs. Group life and personal
accident Takaful entitles the contract holders or their beneficiaries to specified amounts in case of death or
permanent or partial disability.

For medical Takaful, the main risks are illness and related healthcare costs. For group life and personal
accident the main risks are claims from death and permanent or partial disability. The Group generally does
not offer medical Takaful to walk-in customers. Medical, group life and personal accident Takaful are
generally offered to corporate customers with large population to be covered under the policy. The Group
has Retakaful cover for such claims to limit losses for any individual claim to AED 500,000 (2016: AED
500,000) per annum per person for medical.

Individual life

For contracts for which death or disability is the insured risk, the significant factors that could increase the
overall frequency of claims are epidemics, widespread changes in lifestyle and natural disasters, resulting in
earlier or more claims than expected. Group wide reinsurance limits on any single life insured and on all
high risk individuals insured are in place.

Geographical concentration of risks

The Takaful risk arising from Takaful contracts is concentrated mainly in the United Arab Emirates. The
geographical concentration of risks is similar to prior year.

Retakaful risk

In common with other Takaful companies, in order to minimise financial exposure arising from large
Takaful claims, the Group, in the normal course of business, enters into arrangements with other parties for
Retakaful purposes. Such Retakaful arrangements provide for greater diversification of business, allow
management to control exposure to potential losses arising from large risks, and provide additional capacity
for growth. A significant portion of the Retakaful is effected under treaty, facultative and excess of loss
Retakaful contracts.

Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders and as a result
the Group remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails
to meet the obligations under the reinsurance agreements.

To minimise its exposure to significant losses from Retakaful insolvencies, the Group evaluates the financial
condition of its Retakaful, monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions,
activities or economic characteristics of the reinsures and ensure diversification of Retakaful providers. The
Group deals with Retakaful approved by the Board of Directors.
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34. Risk management (continued)

34B Financial risk

The Group’s principal financial instruments are financial investments, receivables arising from Takaful and
Retakaful contracts, investment deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency
risk, profit rate risk and equity price risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

The Group does not enter into any derivative transactions.
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss. For all classes of financial assets held by the Group, the maximum
exposure to credit risk to the Group is the carrying value as disclosed in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Group’s exposure to credit risk:

e The Group only enters into Takaful and Retakaful contracts with recognised, credit worthy third parties.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivables from Takaful and Retakaful contracts are monitored
on an ongoing basis in order to reduce the Group’s exposure against defaults.

e  The Group seeks to limit credit risk with respect to agents and brokers by setting credit limits for
individual agents and brokers and monitoring outstanding receivables.

e  The Group’s investments are managed in accordance with the guidance and the supervision of the
Board of Directors.

e  The Group’s bank balances are maintained with a range of international and local banks in accordance

with limits set by the management.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the consolidated statement
of financial position:

Notes 2017 2016

AED AED

Cash and bank balance 5 64,232,695 58,121,643
Statutory deposits 6 10,000,000 10,000,000
Takaful receivables 8 74,193,165 86,293,655
Other receivables 10 7,051,172 6,166,069
Due from related parties 30 5,957,097 3,164,112
161,434,129 164,800,479

For more detail on the maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instrument, reference
have been made to the specific notes.
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34. Risk management (continued)
34B Financial risk (continued)

Liquidity risk
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Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its commitments associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due. Liquidity requirements are monitored on a monthly basis and management
ensures that sufficient liquid funds are available to meet any commitments as they arise.

The table below summarizes the maturity of the financial liabilities of the Group based on remaining

discounted contractual obligations:

31 December 2017

Liabilities

Due to bank

Trade and other payables

Takaful payables

Murabaha payable

Amounts held under Retakaful treaties
Due to a related parties

31 December 2016

Liabilities

Due to bank

Trade and other payables

Takaful payables

Murabaha payable

Amounts held under Retakaful treaties
Due to a related parties

Market risk

1to I1to Over
12 months 5 years 5 years Total
AED AED AED AED
19,948,801 - - 19,948,801
61,845,225 B - 61,845,225
72,056,135 - - 72,056,135
5,615,009 - - 5,615,009
3,379,083 B - 3,379,083
162,844,305 B - 162,844,305
1to 1t Over
12 months 5 years 5 years Total
AED AED AED AED
10,667,340 - - 10,667,340
67,169,159 - - 67,169,159
77,655,047 - - 77,655,047
10,250,000 - - 10,250,000
4,850,101 - - 4,850,101
6,142,520 - - 6,142,520
176,734,167

176,734,167 - -

Market risk arises from fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, profit rates and equity prices. The value of
risk that may be accepted by the Group is monitored on a regular basis by the Board of Directors.
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34. Risk management (continued)

34B Financial risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group undertakes certain investments denominated in foreign currencies.
Hence, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the reporting date are as follows:

Assets
2017 2016
AED AED
Kuwaiti Dinar (KWD) - 9,642,644
Algerian Dinar (DZD) 28,157,522 22,353,030

The majority of the assets and liabilities are denominated in either U.A.E. Dirhams or US Dollars, which is
pegged to the U.A.E. Dirhams.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% decrease and increase in the UAE Dirham against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% represents management's assessment of the possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis only includes outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit where the UAE Dirham strengthens 5% against the relevant
currency. For a 5% weakening of the UAE Dirham against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit, and the balances below would be negative.

Other
comprehensive income
2017 2016
AED AED
Kuwaiti Dinar (KWD) - (234,083)
Algerian Dinar (DZD) (288,364) (578,588)

This is attributable to the exposure to the FVTOCI investments at each year end.
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34. Risk management (continued)

34B Financial risk (continued)
Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market rates. Floating rate instruments expose the Group to cash flow risk. The Group is
exposed to profit rate risk on certain of its investments and investment deposits. The Group limits its risk
by monitoring changes in such rates.

Details of maturities of the major classes of profit generating financial instruments as at 31 December are
as follows:

2017 Less than 1to Over Effective
1 years 5 years 5 years Total profit rate
AED AED AED AED
Assets:
Wakala deposits 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000 1.5% to2%
Statutory deposits 10,000,000 - 10,000,000 1.5% to 2%
35,000,000 - - 35,000,000
Liabilities:
Murabaha payables - - - -
Due to bank 19,948,801 - - 19,948,801 1.5% to 2%
19,948,801 - - 19,948,801
2016 Less than Ito Over Effective
1 years 5 years 3 years Total profit rate
AED AED AED AED
Assets:
Wakala deposits 25,000,000 B E 25,000,000 1.5% to 2%
Statutory deposits 10,000,000 - 10,000,000 1.5% to 2%
35,000,000 . - 35,000,000
Liabilities:
Murabaha payables 10,250,000 - E 10,250,000 Minimum 4.5%
commercial
profit rates
Due to bank 10,667,340 - - 10,667,340 1.5% to 2%

20,917,340 5 - 20,917,340

The impact of changes in profit rate risk is not expected to be significant for the Group, as all financial
assets and financial liabilities bears fixed profit rates.
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34. Risk management (continued)

34B Financial risk (continued)
Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as the result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual stocks. The equity price risk exposure arises from the Group’s

investment portfolio.

The following table shows the sensitivity of fair values to 10% increase or decrease as at 31 December:

Reflected in income Reflected in other
statement comprehensive income
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable
change change change change
AED AED AED AED
2017
Other financial assets
measured at fair value 64,790,271 (64,790,271) 9,224,164 (9,224,164)
2016
Other financial assets
measured at fair value 60,735,307 (60,735,307) 9,789,128 (9,789,128)
Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When
controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory
implications, or lead to financial loss. The Group cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but
through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Group is able to
manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation

procedures, staff education and assessment processes.
35. Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Differences can therefore arise between

book value under historical cost method and fair value estimates.

(a) Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost

The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised
in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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35. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
(b) Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value

Valuation of financial instruments recorded at fair value, is based on quoted market prices and other
valuation techniques.

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

o The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded
on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices.

e The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

Fair value of the financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair value of the financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Fair value as at

Financial assets 31 December 31 December Valuation Significant Relationship of
2017 2016 Fair value techniques and unobservable unobservable
AED’000 AED’000 hierarchy key inputs input inputs to fair value
Financial assets
at FYTOCI
Quoted equity 63,334 62,133 Level 1 Quoted bid prices  None N/A
securities in an active
market.
Unquoted equity 28,907 35,758 Level 3 Net assets valuation Net assets Higher the net
securities method and value assets value of the
comparable investees, higher the
multiples approach fair value.
Financial assets
at FVTPL
Quoted equity 8,752 11,765 Level 1 Quoted bid prices  None N/A
securities in an active
market.
Unit linked 639,150 595,587 Level 3 Net assets Net assets Higher the net
investments valuation method.  value assets value of the
investees, higher the
fair value.

There were no transfers between each of the levels during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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35. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of other financial assets measured at FVTOCI:

2017 2016

AED’000 AED’000

At 1 January 35,758 35,758
Additions during the year - -
disposals during the year (12,129) -
Transferred out of Level 3 (1,368) -
Changes in fair value 6,646 -
At 31 December 28,907 35,758

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of other financial assets measured at FVTPL:

2017 2016

AED’000 AED’000

At 1 January 595,587 556,782
Net change during the year (change in fair value and net

investment/withdrawal) 43,562 38,805

At 31 December 639,149 595,587

The investments classified under Level 3 category have been fair-valued based on information available for
each investment. There are no financial liabilities which should be measured at fair value and accordingly no
disclosure is made in the above table.

36. Contingencies

(a) Atreporting date, the Group has contingent liabilities in respect of bank and other guarantees arising
in the ordinary course of business amounting AED 0.8 million (2016: AED 0.7 million).

(b) The Group, in common with other insurance companies, is involved as a defendant in a number of
legal cases with other insurance, reinsurance and customers. A provision is made in respect of each
individual case where it is probable that the outcome would result in a loss to the Group in terms of
an outflow of economic resources and a reliable estimate of the amount of outflow can be made. The
expected outcome of the cases is dependent on future legal proceedings. The disputed amounts
involved are AED 0.80 million (2016: AED 0.59 million) million excluding reinsurance impact for
which no contingency provision has been made as of the reporting date due to the uncertainty of
possible outcome of the legal cases.

37. Significant events

(a) The former CEO of the Group resigned on 10 July 2013. The Group entered into an agreement with the
former CEO on 9 July 2013 for the payment and/or transfer of certain assets and investments that were
held by him or by entities controlled by him on trust and for the benefit of the Group. As of 31 December
2017, assets with a total carrying value of AED 15.3 million which are still in his name or owing from
him, have not been yet transferred or paid to the Group. The Group is undergoing several legal
litigations in regards to the transfer of these assets which involves a degree of uncertainty as to the full
and timely recoverability of these assets. However, the Board of Directors is confident in the realization
of a minimum of the carrying value of assets due from him and therefore no adjustments to the carrying
value of the assets are required.
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37. Significant events (continued)

(b) During the year, the Group partially implemented the requirements issued by the Insurance Authority
relating to financial statements disclosures and presentation mainly relating to allocating the line items
of the consolidated statement of financial position between shareholders and policyholders. The
allocation was made by the Group’s management and approved by the Group’s Sharia’a Supervisory
Board.

38. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to align the presentation of the consolidated financial
statements to the requirement of the insurance authority.

39. Non-controlling interest

In 2016, the ownership structure of Amity Health L.L.C. changed to being 90% owned by Nawat
Investments L.L.C (subsidiary) (31 December 2015: 51%) and 10% owned by CEO of Amity Health L.L.C
through capitalization of shareholders’ funds. This resulted in a decrease in the non-controlling interest in
the subsidiary by AED 7,294,000

The movement on the non-controlling interest during the period is as follows:

The movement on the non-controlling interest during the period is as follows:

AED

1 January 2016 (8,441,330)
Loss for the period attributable to non-controlling interest (410,755)
Introduction of new share capital in non-controlling interest 353,000

Net change in non-controlling interest due to change in

ownership percentage 7,294,000

Write off of loan from shareholder 797,591

31 December 2016 (407,494)
Loss for the period attributable to non-controlling interest (394,095)
31 December 2017 (801,589)

40. Approval of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 were approved by the Board of
Directors and authorised for issue on 28 March 2018.



